For “in-person” meetings, persons who are not on the agenda but wish to
address the governing body must register to speak at least 15 minutes prior to
the start of the meeting. For Zoom meetings, the Mayor will canvas attendees

for those wishing to speak. Time limits will be imposed. Written comments
and/or questions to be addressed at the meeting, must be submitted to
jimauxer@yahoo.com 24 hours before the meeting. Requests for copies of
documents related to agenda items must be made in writing at least 24 hours
in advance of the meeting, not during the meeting. NOTE: Council members
are elected to represent citizens of the Corporation of Shepherdstown, please
contact them regarding any questions or comments you may have about the
agenda items. This Council follows Robert’s Rules of Order (Revised).

THE MEETING IS STREAMED ON THE TOWN’S FACEBOOK PAGE
“SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA”

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, December 13, 2022
6:30 p.m.

LOCATION: TOWN HALL
104 NORTH KING STREET
MASK WEARING IS OPTIONAL

1. Call to order

2. Approval of Town Council Meeting Minutes of November 8, 2022

3. Public Comment Period
a. Persons who have registered to address Town Council.

4. Visitors

S. Public Hearings

a. First Reading To An Ordinance Re-Enacting Section 9-207 Of Chapter 2 Of Title 9
Of The Code Of Shepherdstown, West Virginia, To Prohibit Driveways That Cross

Public Sidewalks


mailto:jimauxer@yahoo.com

b. First Reading To An Ordinance Re-Enacting Section 11-405 Of Chapter 4 Of Title 11 Of
The Code Of Shepherdstown, West Virginia, To Prohibit Driveways That Cross Public
Sidewalks

c. First Reading To An Ordinance Section 9-902 Project Permits

6. Unfinished Business
a. Market House update

b. Short-term rental update

7. Old Business

8. New Business

a. Training for Elected and Appointed Town Officials — January 19,
2023 at 5:30 p.m. Shepherd University Byrd Center
b. Update of Town’s website — approval of selected proposal

9. Reports of Committees
A. Finance Committee

1. No meeting November 2022
2. Recommendations: NONE

B. Parking Committee

1. No meeting in November 2022
2. Recommendations: NONE

C. Police Committee

1. No meeting November 2022
2. Recommendations: NONE

D. Public Works Committee

1. Meeting minutes of November 2022- not available
2. Recommendations:
a. Revision to Section 11-405 Driveways Across Sidewalks



E. Parks and Recreation Committee

1. Meeting minutes of November 2022- not available
2. Recommendations: NONE

F. Grants Committee
1. No meeting in November 2022

2. Recommendations: NONE

11. Report of Commissions and Boards

A. Tree Commission

1. Meeting minutes of November 2022 - not available
2. Recommendations: NONE

B. Water and Sanitary Board

1. Meeting minutes of December 1, 2022 — not available
2. Recommendations: NONE

C. Historic Landmarks Commission

1. Meeting minutes of November 2022
2. Recommendations: NONE

D. Planning Commission
1. Meeting minutes of November 2022 — not available
2. Recommendations:
a. Revision to 9-207 Off-Street Parking Requirements and 9-902 Permit
Fee Schedule
E. Board of Appeals

12. Mayor’s Report



Shepherdstown Town Council Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, November 8, 2022

Town Hall
104 North King Street

6:30 p.m.

Mask Wearing is Optional

Also being streamed on the town’s Facebook page “Shepherdstown,
West Virginia”
DRAFT

Present: Jim Auxer (Mayor), Lori Robertson (Recorder), Marty
Amerikaner, Jenny Haynes, Chris Stroech, Leah Rampy, and Cheryl
Roberts.

Absent: None

Staff: Town Clerk Amy Boyd and Director of Public Works Frank Welch.
Visitors: Steve Pearson, Bob Keller, Annette Gavin Bates, Meredith Wait,
Jim Ford, and Harvey Heyser.

Agenda Items 1 and 2-Call to order/approval of Town Council Minutes
(vote required):

Call to order by Mayor Auxer at 6:30 pm.

Approval of the Town Council Meeting Draft Minutes of October 11, and
November 1 (not available), 2022.

C. Stroech- move to approve Town Council Draft Minutes of October
11, 2022. Second by J. Rampy. No objections noted.

Minutes of November 1, 2022 were sent to Council, thus available.

C. Stroech — move to approve Town Council Draft Minutes of
November 1, 2022. Second by L. Rampy. No objections noted.

Agenda Item 3 — Public Comment Period:
a. Persons who have registered to address Town Council.




Agenda Item 4 - Visitors:
Visitor’s comments, if any, are logged in under the specific agenda items.

a. Annette Gavin Bates — Jefferson County Convention & Visitor’s
Bureau
Annette 1s the CEO of the Jefferson County CVB. She is here to give
updates on the marketing the CVB is doing. The CVB has invested a
lot of money in marketing utilizing paper materials, visuals, social
media, etc.
The purpose of the CVB is to appeal to a wide variety people to get
them to come to the area to visit. The largest market for our area is
the DC-Metro area.
The CVB has a lot of local and regional partnerships — Berkeley
Springs, Martinsburg, Ranson, etc.
We leverage our dollars with other areas/partnerships to get more
bang for our buck.
Videographers are expensive but very much worth the money. The
well-made videos can equate to broadcasting opportunities on TV.
Social Media — we have hired a social media coordinator who now
works with the CVB marketing team. We now have a presence on Tik
Tok.
The website — we are always reassessing and improving the website.
Endorsements —Shepherdstown and Harpers Ferry get the most
accolades.
We have a partnership with WV Tourism — this allows the marketing
for all of Jefferson County to spread even faster.
Tourism Summit — was held in May at the Bavarian Inn with 123 in
attendance. Destination Management is so important in marketing.
The next one is April 19, 2023.
The Smithsonian Campaign — there have been 3.5 million hits — so
very successful.
Town brochures have been utilized.
Theme Trails — we have many themed trails — Libation Trail, Arts
Trail, Sweets Trail, Biking Trails, and the C&O are some examples.
Shop Small Campaign — “Find Your Joy in Jefferson County”.



A signature event — “Frosty Fest” — Shepherd University will be a
huge part of this event — an ice skating rink in the bowl on Shepherd
property.

Restaurant Week — the 1 week of March.

Wayfinding — equates to directional signage in each town — it will
look very good and professional.

Welcome Center — thanked us for giving the CVB a place to land.
They love the location in town but the lease expires April 1 and wants
to explore other options in town. She would like the council to
consider their desire to stay in town. They sell Shepherdstown logo
items — t-shirts, hats, bags, all of which have been big sellers.

2022 Digital Campaign = WV Living Magazine that features
Jefferson County, and an insert will go in a DC Bulletin.

Traffic is up 50% on the website. The page use has increased, New
York equals 8.6% of the website traffic. Outdoor recreation is the #1
interest.

More money is spent in the Eastern Panhandle than any other region
of the state.

Video = streaming

A new platform being used is Bandwango.

They are taking the old URL and replacing it with a new URL.
They will produce a new visitors guide.

L. Robertson — so you do want to land in new location in
Shepherdstown?

Annette — yes, we would love to have a presence here. She asked the
council to explore the Market House space for the Welcome Center.
The CVB likes the idea of a shared space in the Market House. The
CVB will be good stewards and we will have ambassadors on the
street — it will be a magical place for the Welcome Center.

Mayor — we have so many visitors from all over. We still need
volunteers for the museum.

L Robertson — this has been an excellent presentation and is very
impressed with the CVB’s marketing approach. Good marketing
matters and it shows.

Annette — thanks. We are proud of our work. We have an amazing
board and get good feedback from businesses. We are always looking
to improve. She would like to be at the table regarding the Market
House use.



Agenda Item 5 — Public Hearings:

a. Second reading and adoption of an ordinance to enact Chapter 16,
Title 9 of the Code of the Corporation of Shepherdstown accepting the
donation of real property.

L. Robertson — move to approve the Second reading and adoption
of an ordinance to enact Chapter 16, Title 9 of the Code of the
Corporation of Shepherdstown accepting the donation of real
property. Second by C. Roberts. No objections noted.

Agenda Item 6 — Unfinished Business:

a. Event request - Christmas in Shepherdstown — update
J. Haynes — will close King St. for the bonfire and German
St for Santa to arrive. The chili cook-off is a go, we will
have one Santa, the Grinch and the Who’s are getting
ready, and she and Judy Shepherd will be decorating
McMurran Hall. The Rotary will put the Xmas tree up
November 18th.
L. Robertson — move to approve Christmas in
Shepherdstown. Second by C. Roberts. No objections
noted.

Agenda Item 7 — Old Business:
a. None

Agenda Item 8 — New Business:
a. General Fund Budget Revision #1
Mayor — this revision allows us to move last years funds to this
year.
C. Stroech — asked where it was being allocated.
A. Boyd - spoke to this and referenced the budget sheet.
L. Robertson — move to approve General Fund Budget
Revision #1. Second by C. Stroech. No objections noted.




L. Rampy — inquired about the balance sheet.

A. Boyd — the previous and the new budgets are in the revised
budget. The new budget can’t be done until Revision #1 is
approved.

There was a discussion over restricted and unrestricted monies.

L. Rampy — suggested a financial workshop for the council. We
should also look at this regularly.

M. Amerikaner — would like to see clarification on the parameters
for the general fund usage. This could be addressed at the next
Finance meeting and look at the criteria and best practices for
contingency use.

b. TEVA Pharmaceutical Industries Settlement Documents
L. Rampy — move to approve the signing of the TEVA
Pharmaceutical Industries Settlement Documents by the
Mayor. Second by M. Amerikaner. No objections noted.

c. Use of ARPA Funds for Sewer Plant Improvement
F. Welch — the fund consists of $429K. The last 60 days one of
the major machines at the sewer plant went bad. The machine
had 100,000 hours on it so it was getting old already. A new
press has been ordered at a cost of $355K plus installation. We
can use the ARPA Funds for infrastructure. The Finance
Committee has recommended this funding use. The breakdown
has been costing us $4K a week to remove the sludge — and we
have to remove the sludge as part of our operation.
C. Roberts — move to approve the ARPA Funds for the Sewer
Plant Improvement. Second by L. Robertson. No objections
noted.

Agenda Item 9 — Mavor’s Report:

e Market House — Inspection — we are getting a second inspection
form Christy Stuart Brown for $400.00. This inspection will be
for the whole building. The Mayor will send her credentials to
the Council. The building is 2280 square feet.

o Please get any action items from minutes with supporting
documentation taken to A. Boyd as soon as possible.



e Rotary will be putting up the Christmas tree and adding the
lights.

e M. Amerikaner — Dr. Eck is giving a 3-part presentation via
Zoom to understand ADA December 1, 8, and 15", Also, the
Walking Path signed agreement by the Mayor has been sent.

e (. Stroech — handed out a flyer. It was handed out to all of the
businesses. The goal is to chat about what is working and what is
not. If we can think of any topics for discussion, please reach out
to Chris and/or Leah. We want to strive for the businesses to
work together. The Council is invited.

Supporting A Thriving Downtown Shepherdstown

A Shepherdstown Community Forum

Thursday, November 17, 2022

7:00 — 8:30 p.m.

Free and open to all those who live, work, and shop in the
Shepherdstown area.

This Shepherdstown Community Forum is a space to learn from
others, exchange ideas, and generate new initiatives for a thriving
downtown! A panel discussion will be followed by discussion
and sharing.

Hosted by Council members Chris Stroech and Leah Rampy

e He is working on his Christmas speech

Agenda Item 10 — Reports of Committees:

A. Finance Committee:
1. Meeting minutes of October 213, 2022
2. Finance Reporting:
3. Recommendations
a. Funding available for Town Administrator position with
a salary of $75,000 - $85,000. (no vote)

Mayor — the town can cover the expense of the proposed
annual salary with the benefit package. The total with the benefit
package is $130,000 and our budget includes this amount.

Chris Stroech — where do these funds come from?

A. Boyd explained that if a position oversees many to all
departments, each department has a line item that that



contributes money for that position. As Town Clerk, her
position is set up in this manner.

L. Robertson — there is a job description that the Personnel
Committee developed and has been forwarded to our town
attorney for his review.

B. Parking Committee:
1. No October 2022 meeting
2. Recommendations: None

C. Police Committee:
1. No October 2022 meeting
2. Recommendations: None

D. Parks and Recreation Committee:
1. Meeting minutes of October 2022 - not available
2. Recommendations:
a. None

E. Public Works Committee:
1. Meeting minutes of October 2022 — not available
2. Recommendations:
a. Amendment to 11-405 Driveways across sidewalks

Mayor — this prohibits driving cars over sidewalks.
L. Robertson — move to approve Amendment 11-405
Driveways across sidewalks. Second by C. Stroech. No
objections noted.

F. Path Advisory Committee
1. No meeting in October 2022
2. Recommendations:
a. None

G. Grants Committee
1. Meeting minutes of October 2022 — not available
2. Recommendations:
a. None



Agenda item 11 — Report of Commissions, Authority and Boards:

1. Historic Landmarks Commission:
1. Meeting minutes of October 2022 — not available
2. Recommendations:
a. None

2. Planning Commission:
1. Meeting minutes of October 2022 — not available
2. Recommendations:
None

3. Tree Commission
1. Meeting minutes of October 2022 — not available
2. Recommendations:
a. None

4. Water and Sanitary Board:
1 ~Meeting minutes of October 27, 2022 - not available
2 — Recommendations:
a. None

5. Board of Appeals
1. None scheduled.

L. Robertson — move to adjourn at 7:56 p.m. Second by M. Amerikaner.
No objections noted.

Draft Minutes respectfully submitted by L. Robertson, Recorder for the
Corporation of Shepherdstown.



TITLE 9 PLANNING AND ZONING

Proposed changes:

Section 9-207 Off-street parking requirements

(OPENING PARAGRAPH)

nou

“......Each space shall have access to a-street-or an alley..... Access across a public sidewalk is

prohibited”

(1){b) “No parking space may be located in a front or side yard. This-decs-netprohibit Pat- g 3
ahrivaag,”

(IN(c) “Parking-spacesmay-be-providedin-sideandrearyardsinthe Commercial-District but-are limitad
to-reurvares inResidontatBistiickst

TITLE 11 PUBLIC WORKS AND REFUSE COLLECTION

Section 11-405-Driveways across sidewalks-Any-person-desicinga-driveway-acrossthesidewalk-olfhis
premises-shall-cause-thesidewalicto-be-paved-with-cement-orethermaterialdesighated-by-the straet
injured-or-destroyed-by-the-use-of such-driveway. “Driveways across sidewalks are prohibited.”



AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING

SECTION 9-207 OF CHAPTER 2 OF TITLE 9 OF THE
CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA,

TO PROHIBIT DRIVEWAYS THAT CROSS PUBLIC SIDEWALKS

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:

Chapter 2 of Title 9 of the Town Code is hereby amended by amending and re-enacting
Section 9-207, entitled "Off-street parking requirements"”, to prohibit driveways that cross public
sidewalks; accordingly, there is amended and re-enacted Section 9-207 of Chapter 2 of Title 9 to

read as follows:

Section 9-207 Off-street parking requirements.

Parking space or spaces surfaced with asphalt, concrete or other stabilized material such as
crusher-run and three (3) inches of stone shall be provided on any lot on which any of the following uses are
hereafter established. Each space shall have access to an alley. Access across a public sidewalk is prohibited,
For purposes of computing, each space will be not less than nine (9) feet wide nor twenty (20) feet long.

I. Minimum requirements for specific uses:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

For dwellings, one (1) space on the lot for each living unit in the building. For
lodging houses, one (1) space on the lot for each lodging unit in the dwelling.

For churches erected on new sites, one parking space on the lot for each ten (10)
seats in the main auditorium, but existing churches and additions to or enlargements
of churches existing at the time of passage of this title shall be exempt from this
requirement.

For places of public assembly, including auditoriums and theatres, one space for
each seven (7) seats provided.

For all schools, except high schools, two (2) spaces for each classroom; for high
schools ten (10) spaces for each classroom.

For institutions, clubs, lodges and other public and semi-public buildings, five (5)
spaces for each one thousand (1,000) square feet of floor area.

For commercial and residential uses located on the same lot in the Residential
Commercial District, one space for each dwelling unit and one space for each two
hundred (200) square feet of commercial floor area, with a minimum of two (2)
spaces required.

For commercial uses, except as specified in Section 9-207 I (f), one (1) space for
each three hundred (300) square feet of floor area and one (1) space for each two
(2) employees.

11. General rules and exceptions:




AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING
SECTION 11-405 OF CHAPTER 4 OF TITLE 11 OF THE
CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA,
TO PROHIBIT DRIVEWAYS THAT CROSS PUBLIC SIDEWALKS

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:

Chapter 4 of Title 11 of the Town Code is hereby amended by amending and re-enacting
Section 11-405, now entitled "Prohibition of driveways across sidewalks", to prohibit driveways
that cross public sidewalks. Accordingly, there is amended and re-enacted Section 11-405 of

Chapter 4 of Title 11 to read as follows:

Section 11-405 Prohibition of driveways across sidewalks.

Driveways across sidewalks are prohibited.

First Reading:

Second Reading:

Adopted:

15125867.1



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8 OF TITLE 9 OF THE CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN
RELATING TO PROJECT PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE

Please check all boxes that may apply (Application Fees Due Upon Submittal):

Category I:

Minor projects such as murals, awnings, porch railings, window boxes, satellite dishes, solar panels,
gutters & downspouts, patios, sidewalks, hardscaping, signs, fences, storage sheds (not attached to the
ground) and other minor changes and permit extensions.

$50.00
a 1I;
Window replacement, roof replacement, siding replacement, porch enclosure, driveways, carports and
decks.
$100.00
Category II1:

New construction of and/or additions to residential, commercial and industrial structures.

$300 + $0.50 per sq. ft.

New construction of garages & other accessory buildings (permanently attached to the ground).

$50 + $0.10 per sq. ft.

Category1V:

Demolition or Relocation of a Structure: Removal ofany building feature(s) or razing of any
structure(s) or relocation of a structure to new location. For either project, the applicant must submit
the following in writing (in addition to an application):

1. Reason for the demolition/relocation (including historic documentation).
2. Describe the structure's condition in detail.
3. Describe the proposed reuse of the site, including full drawings of new structure & landscaping.
4. Evidence of relevant funding or financial concerns.
5. Timeframe for project
$50.00 Accessory Buildings
$150.00 Non-Contributing Structures (< 50 years old)
$500.00 Contributing Structures (<50 years old)

The Planning & Zoning Administrator shall categorize any request not specifically listed in the above
categories.

Fees shall be paid to the Town Treasurer/Clerk and must accompany the application. If work begins
without the required permit and/or certificate, double the cost of said permit and/or certificate will be
charged.

First Reading:

Second Reading:

Adopted:




NT\is

Application Number -

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8 OF TITLE 9 OF THE CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN
RELATING TO PROJECT PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:
Section 9-902 of Chapter 8 paragraph XIV be amended as follows:
Category I:. Minor projects such as painting (change in color only), awnings, porch railings, window boxes,
satellite dishes, solar panels, propane tanks, signs, or other minor changes and permit extensions
$35.00
.Category II: | Accessory buildings, sidewalks, decks, fences, driveways, garages, storage buildings, carports
$50.00
Category[Il: Single family dwelling major changes excluding additions but including window and roof
replacement, non-profit tax exempt organizations.
$150.00
(Plus $1.50 per $1,000.00 value over $50,000.00)
Category|V: Additions, commercial-industrial, multi-family residences
$400.00
(Plus $1.50 per $1,000.00 value over $50,000.00)
Category V.  Demolition
J ‘ | $50.00 "+ Accessory Buildings

. $150.00 - ..Non Contriouting,Structures
- $500,0,0 . Contributing $tructures

The Planning Commission shall categorize any request not specifically listed in the above categories.

Fees shall be paid to the Town Treasurer/Clerk and must accompany the application. If work begins
without the required permit, double the cost of said permit would be charged.



AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING
SECTION 9-214 OF CHAPTER 2, TITLE 9
OF THE CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA, TO ESTABLISH PERMIT
REQUIREMENTS FOR RENTAL UNITSSHORT-FERM RENTAL-PROPERTIES.

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:

Chapter 2 of Title 9 of the Shepherdstown Code is hereby amended by re-enacting Section 9-214,
entitled “Permits for Short-Term Rental Properties; Application by Responsible Local Agent;
Application Fee; Penalties,” to establish permit requirements for rental units and to re-title the
ordinance as “Permits for Rental Units: Application by Responsible Local Agent; Application fee:

Penalties”short-termrental-properties. Accordingly, there is enacted Section 9-214 of Chapter 2
of Title 9 to read as follows:

Section 9-214: Regulation—ef short-term—rental properties—Permits for Rental Units;

Application by Responsible Local Agent; Application fee:; Penalties.

On January 1, 2023, and thereafter, it shall be unlawful for any owner to lease or rent, or hold out

for rent or lease by advertisement or otherwise, a rental unit located within Shepherdstown without
possession of a valid residential rental license for that rental unit, authorized by the Ttown and
complying with all provisions of this article. The residential rental license requirement provided
for in this article shall be in addition to any general business license required in this article.

(a) The residential rental license provided for in this article shall be in the form of a certificate
issued by the Town Clerkeity-eeleetor to any owner making proper application on forms
to be prescribed and furnished by the Town Clerkeityeotector.

(b) An application for a residential rental license may be denied if the owner has:

() Delinquent business and occupation taxes related to income derived by owner from
rental units located within the city: or

(2) Delinquent fire or refuse fees related to the rental unit for which the owner is
applying for a residential rental license: or

(3) Fines due and owing the city arising from building, planning or zoning violations
related to the rental unit for which the owner is applying for a license.




(c) An application for a residential rental license shall be denied if the Towneity has reason to
believe following a reasonable and appropriate inquiry, that one or more of the rental units
1s unfit for human occupancy or is located in an unsafe structure.

(d) Applications for a residential rental license shall be filed with the Town Clerkeity
eollector's-office, and shall include the following:

() The street address of the rental unit(s);

(2) The number and types of rental unit(s):

(3) The square footage of each rental unit;

(4) Name, residence address, telephone number, and e-mail address (if applicable),
mobile telephone number, and facsimile number of all owners of the rental unit(s):

(5 Name, residence address, telephone number, and e-mail address (if applicable),
mobile telephone number, and facsimile number of the responsible local agent
designated by the owner, for each rental unit;

(6) The maximum number of tenants permitted for each rental unit;

(7) The name, address, telephone number, and e-mail address (if applicable), mobile
telephone number, and facsimile number of the person(s) authorized to collect rent
from the tenants if other than owner or responsible local agent:;

(8) The name, address, telephone number, and e-mail address (if applicable). mobile
telephone number, and facsimile number of the person authorized to make or order
repairs or services for the rental unit, if in violation of towneity or state codes, if
the person is other than the owner or the responsible local agent:

(N The name, address and telephone number of the bank or other financial institution,
if any, who holds a lien on the rental unit(s) or the land on which the rental unit(s)
1s located:

(10)  The name, address and telephone number of the person designated to accept all
legal notices or services of process with respect to the rental unit(s).

(11)  Fee of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00).

(e) The issuance of a residential rental license by the Towneity for any rental unit shall not
constitute a finding by the Towneity that the rental unit is in compliance with any or all
requirements imposed by towneity, state, or federal law or regulation.

() All ordinances and regulations of the Corporation of Shepherdstown, including but not

limited to the Corporation of Shepherdstown Parking Regulations and Section 8-209 of
Chapter 2, Title 8. providing for regulations and license taxes. entitled “Hotels, motels,




(g)

rental units, shert-termrental-properties etc., where lodging furnished: license fees”, shall
apply to businesses operating as rental umtsas—sheﬁ—teﬂﬂ—feiﬁai—meﬁeﬁws

All information provided on the license application form for the residential rental license

(h)

shall be accurate and complete. No person shall provide inaccurate information for the
license of a rental unit; or fail to provide the information required for a residential rental
license. The residential rental license application form shall be signed by both the owner(s)
and the designated responsible local agent, if applicable. Where the owner is not a natural
person, the owner information shall be that of the president, general manager or other chief
executive of the organization who is duly authorized to execute the application. Where
more than one person has an ownership interest, the required information shall be provided
for each such owner.

The effective date for a residential rental license shall be from January 1 through December

(1)

31 of each year. The owner shall apply for renewal each year prior to the expiration of the
residential rental license by completing a renewal application on forms to be prescribed
and furnished by the Town Clerkeitycolector,

Responsible Agents shall notify the Town Clerkeity—eoleetor of any change in the

(1)

designation of the responsible local agent, including a change in name, address. e-mail
address, telephone number, mobile telephone number or facsimile number of the
designated responsible local agent within five business days of the change. Within 30 days
of any change of ownership of a rental unit, the new owner shall apply for a residential
rental license for that rental unit.

After adequate inquiry and verification of the reasons therefor, the Town Clerkeity

(k)

coleeter, upon reasonable written notice to the licensee, may revoke any residential rental
license issued by him pursuant to the provisions of this Code for any reason which would
have been grounds for denial of such license when first issued, for violation of any term or
condition of such license, or for violation of any applicable provision of state law, this
Code or other ordinance related to building, fire, health, safety or zoning. Any person
having an interest in any residential rental license so revoked and who disputes such
revocation may request that the Town Clerkeity-eoleetor further investigate the grounds
for revocation and reconsider this action. If the Town Clerkeity-eolleetor accedes to such
request, he or she may temporarily suspend or reinstate the residential rental license
pending ahis final decision. It the Town Clerkeity—eeHector refuses to accede to such
request or if, upon reconsideration, he or she affirms thehis revocation of the residential
rental license, his decision shall be final, subject to such judicial review as may be provided

by law.

Any owner who leases or rents, or holds out for rent by advertisement or otherwise, a rental

unit within the Towneity without possession of a valid residential rental license for that
rental unit, or who otherwise fails to comply with the requirements of this article shall be
subject to a fine of not less than $500.00 per rental unit. Each month the violation exists
shall constitute a separate violation.




The imposition of a penalty does not prevent suspension or revocation of a license,

permit or franchise, or other administrative sanctions.

Violations of this article that are continuous with respect to time are a public

(3)

nuisance and may be abated by injunctive or other equitable relief. The imposition
of a penalty does not prevent injunctive relief.

Violations of this article shall be adjudicated through the Municipal Court of

First Reading:
Second Reading:

Adopted:

Shepherdstown, West Virginia.




AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING
SECTION 9-13 OF CHAPTER 13, TITLE 9
OF THE CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA, TO REVISE THE
DEFINITIONS.

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:

Chapter 13 of Title 9 of the Shepherdstown Code is hereby amended by amending and re-enacting
Section 9-13, entitled “Definitions,” to revise the definitions. Accordingly, there is re-enacted
Section 9-13 of Chapter 13 of Title 9 to read as follows:

Section 9-13: Definitions

Bed-and-Breakfast Establishment - A residence occupied by the owner in which rooms are let for
transients and in which no meal other than breakfast is served for payment. Includes inns in which
no long-term lease for rooms is executed by the guest and in which no meals are served for
payment.

ghouse —Sece Rental UnitA-dwelling-in-which,for-compensation—an—owner—furnishes
s - ar e o-not-moretha ey 110 qests—who-mav—b

& < * 9

Boardin

£y 3 ¥ ?

Hotel - Any building containing ten (10) or more guest rooms where, for compensation, lodging,
meals, or both are provided for ten (10) or more guests, excluding a fraternity or sorority house,
school or college dormitory, tourist home, motel or apartment hotel as defined herein.

Lodging Home — See_Rental Unit reeminghouse.

Motel - Any group of dwelling units combined or separate, used for the purpose of housing
transient guests, each unit of which is provided with its own toilet, washroom and off-street parking
facilities.

Rooming house -

) AV VaVa

Rental Unit.

Breakfastis-the-only-meal alowed-to-be-servedSee Rental Unit.




Rental Unit - a room or group of rooms within any structure, building. house, mobile home. or
any portion thereof, arranged or designed to be occupied for residential sleeping, living, cooking,
and sanitation purposes by one or more persons, which is leased or rented from the owner of such
units, or the owner's designated agent, to any tenant, whether by day, week, month, vear, or any
other term.

Responsible Local Agent - the owner, or a natural person designated by the owner as the agent
responsible for operating a rental unit in compliance with the ordinances adopted by the city. In
many instances, the responsible local agent may be the owner if no other responsible party exists.

Tenant - any individual who has, in exchange for monetary or other valuable consideration, the
temporary use and occupancy of real property owned by another person in subordination to that
other person's title and with that other person's consent; for example, a person who rents or leases
a rental unit from an owner.

First Reading:

Second Reading:

Adopted:




AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING
SECTION 9-502 OF CHAPTER 5, TITLE 9
OF THE CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA, TO REVISE THE USES.

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:

Chapter 5 of Title 9 of the Shepherdstown Code is hereby amended by amending and re-enacting
Section 9-502, entitled “Uses permitted in the PR (Park Residential District),” to revise the uses.
Accordingly, there is re-enacted Section 9-502 of Chapter 5 of Title 9 to read as follows:

9-502 Uses permitted in the PR (Park Residential District)
(a) Uses (a) through (d) permitted in the COS District.

(b) A single family residence per existing lot as presently recorded with no construction on a
slope greater than twelve (12) percent, or below the base flood level as determined by H.U.D.

(c) Rental Units.

First Reading:

Second Reading:

Adopted:




AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING
SECTION 8-209 OF CHAPTER 2, TITLE 8
OF THE CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA, TO REVISE THE CLASS
OF BUSINESSES.

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:

Chapter 2 of Title 8 of the Shepherdstown Code is hereby amended by amending and re- enacting
Section 8-209, entitled “Hotels, motels, rental units, etc.,” to revise the class of businesses and and to
re-title the ordinance as “Hotels, motels, rental units, etc. where lodging furnished: license fee”.
Accordingly, there is re-enacted Section 8-209 of Chapter 2 of Title 8 to read as follows:

8-209 Hotels, motels, beardingheusesrental units, ete. where lodging furnished; license fee

Any person engaging in the business of providing the accommodations or services of a hotel,

motel, rental units inn-touristhome;roominghouse-bearding-house-or other establishment where

lodging is furnished for compensation shall pay an annual town license tax of twe-deHars$100.00.
An additional twenty-five-eents-$10.00 shall be due for each bedroom in excess of seven, provided
that no fee shall exceed- $500.00ten-doHars.

First Reading:

Second Reading:

Adopted:




AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING
SECTION 8-801 OF CHAPTER 8, TITLE 8
OF THE CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA, TO REVISE THE
DEFINITIONS.

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:

Chapter 8 of Title 8 of the Shepherdstown Code is hereby amended by amending and re-enacting
Section 8-801, entitled “Definitions,” to revise the definitions. Accordingly, there is re-enacted
Section 8-801 of Chapter 8 of Title 8 to read as follows:

8-801 Definitions.
For the purposes of this Ordinance, the term:

(a) "Town" and "Town Council" shall mean the Town Council of Shepherdstown, West Virginia,
a political subdivision of the State of West Virginia.

(b) "Commission", "County", or "County Commission" shall mean the County Commission of
Jefferson County, West Virginia, acting on behalf of Jefferson County, a political subdivision of
the State of West Virginia.

(¢) "Consideration paid" or "consideration" means the amount received in money, credits, property
or other consideration for or in exchange for the right to occupy a hotel room as herein defined.

(d) "Consumer" means a person who pays the consideration for the use or occupancy of a hotel
room. The term "consumer" shall not be construed to mean the government of the United States
of America, its agencies or instrumentalities, or the government of the State of West Virginia or
political subdivision thereof.

(e) "Convention and Visitor's Bureau" and "Visitor's and Convention Bureau" are interchangeable,
and shall mean any convention and/or visitor's bureau formed for the promotion of conventions
and tourism within this Town or within Jefferson County and approved by resolution of the Town
Council.

(f) "Convention Center" means a convention facility owned by the State, a county, a municipality
or other public entity or instrumentality and shall include all facilities, including armories,
commercial, office, community service and parking facilities and publicly owned facilities
constructed or used for the accommodation and entertainment of tourists and visitors, constructed
in conjunction with the Convention Center and forming reasonable appurtenances thereto.

(g) "Evade" means to willfully and fraudulently commit any act with the intent of depriving the
State of payment of any tax which there is a known legal duty to pay.



(h) "Fraud" means any false representation or concealment as to any material fact made by any
person with the knowledge it is not true and correct, with the intention that such representation or
concealment be relied upon by the State.

(i) "Hotel" means any facility, building or buildings, publicly or privately owned in which the
public may for a consideration, obtain sleeping accommodations. The term shall include, but not
be limited to, bearding-houses-hotels, motels, inns, courts, lodges, and cabins—and-tourist homes.
The term "hotel”: shall include State, county and city parks offering accommodations as herein set
forth. The term "hotel" shall not be construed to mean any hospital, sanitarium, extended care
facility, nursing home or university or college housing unit or any facility providing fewer than
three hotel rooms, nor any tent, trailer or camper campsites: Provided, that where a university or
college housing unit provides sleeping accommodations for the general nonstudent public for a
consideration, the term "hotel" shall, if otherwise applicable, apply to such accommodations for
the purposes of this tax.

() "Hotel operator" means the person who is proprietor of a hotel, whether in the capacity of
owner, lessee, mortgagee in possession, licensee, trustee in possession, trustee in bankruptcy,
receiver, executor or in any other capacity. Where the hotel operator performs his functions
through a managing agent of any type or character other than an employee, the managing agent
shall also be deemed a hotel operator for the purpose of this Ordinance and shall have the same
duties and liabilities as his principal. Compliance with the provisions of this Ordinance by either
the principal or the managing agent shall, however, be considered to be compliance by both.

(k) "Hotel room" means any room or suite of rooms or other facility affording sleeping
accommodations to the general public and situated within a hotel. The term "hotel room" shall not
be construed to mean a banquet room, meeting room or any other room not primarily used for, or
in conjunction with, sleeping accommodations.

(1) "Net Proceeds" means the gross amount of tax collected less the amount of tax lawfully
refunded.

(m) "Person" means any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, syndicate, social
club, fraternal organization, joint stock company, receiver, corporation, guardian, trust business
trust, trustee, committee, estate, executor, administrator, or any other group or combination acting
as a unit.

(n) "Promotion of the Arts" means activity to promote public appreciation and interest in one or
more of the arts. It includes the promotion of music for all types, the dramatic arts, dancing,
painting in the creative arts through shows, exhibits, festivals, concerts, musicals and plays.

(0) "Recreation Facilities" means and includes any public parks, parkway, playground, public
recreation center, athletic field, sports arena, stadium, skating rink arena, golf course, tennis courts
and other park and recreational facilities, whether of a like or different nature, that are owned by
the Town.



(p) "Regional Travel Council" means a non-stock, non-profit corporation, with a full-time staff
working exclusively to promote tourism and to attract conventions, conferences and visitors to the
region of this State served by the Regional Travel Council.

(q) ““Sherttermrental propertyRental Unit” means a room or group of rooms within any structure,

building, house, mobile home, or any portion thereof, arranged or designed to be occupied for
residential sleeping, living, cooking, and sanitation purposes by one or more persons. which is
leased or rented from the owner of such units, or the owner's designated agent, to any tenant,
whether by day, week, month, vear, or any other term.

(rg) "Tax", "taxes" or "this tax" means the hotel occupancy tax authorized by this Ordinance.

(sr) "Taxing authority” means the Shepherdstown Town Council levying or imposing the tax
authorized by this Ordinance.

(ts) "Taxpayer" means any person liable for the tax authorized by this Ordinance.

(ut) "Willfully" means the intentional violation of a known legal duty to perform any act, required
to be performed by any provision of this Ordinance, in respect of which the violation occurs:
Provided, that the mere failure to perform any act shall not be a willful violation under this
Ordinance. A willful violation of the Ordinance requires that the defendant have had knowledge
of; or notice of a duty to perform such act, and that the defendant, with knowledge of or notice of
such duty, intentionally failed to perform such act.

Source of Authority: W.Va. Code § 7-18-3

First Reading:

Second Reading:

Adopted:




AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING
SECTION 9-207 OF CHAPTER 2, TITLE 9
OF THE CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA, TO REVISE OFF STREET
PARKING REQUIREMENTS TO REVISE THE CLASS OF BUSINESSES.

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS:

Chapter 2 of Title 9 of the Shepherdstown Code is hereby amended by amending and re-enacting
Section 9-207, entitled “Off-street parking requirements,” to revise the class of businesses 10
include rental units, hotels, and other lodging establishments. Accordingly, there is re-enacted
Section 9-207 of Chapter 2 of Title 9 to read as follows:

9-207 Off-street parking requirements.

Parking space or spaces surfaced with asphalt, concrete or other stabilized material such as crusher-
run and three (3) inches of stone shall be provided on any lot on which any of the following uses
are hereafter established. Each space shall have access to an alley. Access across a public sidewalk
is prohibited. For purposes of computing, each space will be not less than nine (9) feet wide nor
twenty (20) feet long.

I. Minimum requirements for specific uses:

(a) For dwellings, one (1) space on the lot for each living unit in the building. For,
lodging-housesrental units, hotels or other establishments where lodging is furnished, one (1) space
on the lot for each ledging-dwelling unit in the dwelling.

(b) For churches erected on new sites, one parking space on the lot for each ten (10)
seats in the main auditorium, but existing churches and additions to or enlargements of churches
existing at the time of passage of this title shall be exempt from this requirement.

(c) For places of public assembly, including auditoriums and theatres, one space for
each seven (7) seats provided.

(d) For all schools, except high schools, two (2) spaces for each classroom; for high
schools ten (10) spaces for each classroom.

(e) For institutions, clubs, lodges and other public and semi-public buildings, five
(5) spaces for each one thousand (1,000) square feet of floor area.

(f) For commercial and residential uses located on the same lot in the Residential
Commercial District, one space for each dwelling unit and one space for each two hundred (200)
square feet of commercial floor area, with a minimum of two (2) spaces required.

(g) For commercial uses, except as specified in Section 9-207 I (f), one (1) space
for each three hundred (300) square feet of floor area and one (1) space for each two (2) employees.

II. General rules and exceptions:



(a) In the RC and C Districts, parking space may be provided on a separate lot if
within three hundred (300) feet of the building served, and two (2) or more owners may join
together in the provision of this parking space.

(b) No parking space may be located in a front or side yard.

(c) Parking space for any use specifically permitted in an R District may be
provided on a lot adjoining that use.

(d) Existing buildings not complying with off-street parking requirements may be
remodeled, repaired or structurally altered, but any enlargement must provide the required parking
spaces for said enlargement.

First Reading:

Second Reading:

Adopted:

15110792.1



A evogov

Website Redevelopment
Proposal for The Town of
Shepherdsown, West Virginia
To: Arvy Boyd - Town of Sheperdslown,

West Virginia
From: John McKown - EvoGoy, Inc.
Vaiid until: December 31, 2022
Caver Letter
Table of Contents
Executive Summary
Company Overview

Project Team

EvoGov CMS - The Municipal
Website Platform

ADA / WCAG 2.0 Compliance
Social Media Integration

Custom, Responsive Website
Design

Client References

Implementation and Timeline

Website Hosting & Security Website Redevelopment Proposal for The Town of
Support & Training Shepherdsown, West Virginia

Discuss (4) Created for:

Town of Sheperdstown, West Virginia
Proposal Date Sent: January 24, 2022
Proposal ID: 1559920
Created By: John McKown

& Download PDF version

Expires: December 31, 2022

Cover Letter



January 24, 2022

Website Red&¥ijrfigigstown.us
Proposal for The Town of
Shepherdsown, West Virginia
To. Amy Boyd - ToDeaf Sirayerdstown,
West Virginia
From: John McKown - EvoGoy, Inc.
Valid until December 31, 2022

2 evogov

PO Box 3614
n, West Virginia Parker, Colorado 80134
303-557-0168

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with a quote for your website project. We have successfully
Cover Letter ~ partnered with hundreds of local government agencies to bring more of their services online so that they
can better serve their communities. We will make your website easier to use and maintain. We will also
[help you to digitize your forms, improve posting of meetings and agendas, integrate mass email, and work
Table of Contenls ; 2 2 ; S
with each of your departments to make sure that their key services are available and easy to find in your
new website,
Executive Summary
EvoGov is the only local government website design company that provides a scalable, cloud-based
Company Ovendatform that is automatically updated with new features each month. Instead of your website becoming
outdated after it launches, your website will evolve and continue to get new features with EvoGov. That is

i why we we named our company EvoGov - we build websites that evolve over time and continually improve.
Project Team

By partnering with EvoGov, you will receive:

EvoGov CMS - The Wusiginlwebsite design with the latest and best mobile/responsive design framework.

Website Platiorm® Our complete suite of purpose-built local government applications is included with your website
hosting without the additional licensing fees our competitors charge. This dramatically lowers your

ees if you choose EvoGov.

ARENIGAR 20 Poéﬂ%ﬁéégrad;i design so that you won't have to start over with your website after 3-5 years of hosting
to get a fresh look and the latest features.

Social Media Integratiginplete migration of your website content is included with your design fee. Our competitors charge a
separate migration fee and they also limit the amount of content migrated.

Custom, ResponsivelgBBEi@ent meetings and training meetings are included with your design fee, saving you money with

your new website project.

= 100% uptime on Amazon Web Services (AWS). No storage limits like our competitors. 24/7/365

Support. No limits or fees for initial training meetings.

100% satisfaction with your new website.

Design
Client References,

uplersniation ﬁPé‘aEﬁ’l%’t‘”l?s know if you would like additional information, or a live demo of our platform and our design

process.
Website Hosting & Security

Support & Trainingtcerely,

John McKown

President
& Download PDEYSS190 0g0v.com
Direct Line: 303-557-0168 x100

Table of Contents



Viest|
Fron: John MeK]
Val' unil Da

Cover Letter

Executive Summary

Tat
Company Overview
Ext Project Team
EvoGov CMS
Co .
Custom, Responsive Website Design
Prc Client References
Implementation & Timeline
Evi
st Website Hosting and Security
Support & Training
AD Cost Proposal
Optional Enhancements
So
Cu
De
Clit

Implementation and Timeline
Website Hosting & Security

Suppert & Training

Execu

ISCUSS

tiye'Summary

A better sclution for your website with no limits.

& Downloa

Our easy-to-use but powerful CMS includes department-level content
management and control so that departments can manage their own
content easily. Unlimited versioning and deletion restores are built into
the entire system to protect your website data. We also provide access to
all of the design area of your website, something our competitors don't
do.

We utilize the latest and best design standard for mobile-first websites
that is known as "CSS Grid". We guarantee your website will look great on
all devices, Qur competitors don't use these standards, so only they can
update your design.

EvoGov will ensure that your new website is level AA compliant with the
WCAG 2.0 specification. This will ensure that your website is accessible
and this will help ta limit your liability for ADA lawsuits. We recommend
several 3rd party ADA monitoring services, and we have those listed in the
Optional Enhancements area of this proposal. We also list companies we
recommend to avoid for that service.



Website Re
Proposal fo
Shepherdsow
To: Amy Boyd - To

West

From: Jomn McK

Valid urt i De
Cover Letter

Table of Content

Executive Sumn

Company Overv

Project Team

EvoGov CMS -~
Website Platforn

ADA/WCAG 2.1
Social Media Int

Cu ’
De

Clir

Im|

Su

Your dedicated project manager with EvoGov will meet with each of your
department heads to ensure that they are aware of the design options for
their department and so we can assess the best way to update their
content. These meetings are included and this is unique to EvoGov.

Our website designers will meet with your team to ensure that your
branding, values, and unique identity shine through with your new design.
We assist many custemers with logo and color scheme help as part of our
projects.

EvoGov will migrate all of your website content from your old website to
your new website as part of your design fee with us. This will save a lot of
maoney on your project.

SEO tools are built-into the EvoGov CMS, We will optimize your content as
itis migrated and show your employees how to make sure your content
shows up in search engines. Google Analytics traffic report setup help is
also included.

Our platform is a UNIFIED platform that is hosted on the most reliable
cloud hosting environment in the world - Amazon Web Services. Our
competitors use many different servers, hosts, and application
environments because they bought the companies and applications that
make up their solutions. They claim these include "Cloud-Based Access”
but this is nothing more than misleading word-play for how you log into
your website, not how it is actually hosted. Make no mistake about it - a
purely Amazon-hosted system like EvoGov's is the real deal, with single
sign-on and no popups to log into multiple systems. Your hosting is
guaranteed with 100% uptime, and without the downtime of multiple
DDOS attacks that other providers experience. You also don't have
storage limits with EvoGov.

We offer the best support for DNS using Amazon' Route 53 service. This
enables your IT staff to login and directly manage your important DNS
settings, or we can help manage them as well. SSL certificates are free for
all domains that we host and are unlimited. We offer domain registration
and free assistance to setup .gov domains as well. Technical support is
free of charge and not billed separately.

EvoGov will migrate all of your website content from your old website to
your new website as part of your design fee with us, This will save a lot of
money on your project.

SEOQ tools are built-into the EvoGov CMS. We will optimize your content as
itis migrated and show your employees how to make sure your content
shows up in search engines. Google Analytics traffic report setup help is
also included.

Company Overview

Mission Statement

Our mission is to become the preferred website and internet application vendor for local government
agencies from across North America. We will achieve this goal by providing the very best technology,
support, and exceptional value to our customers.



We greatly value our relationships with our employees, customers, and partners. For our company to
thrive, these relationships must also thrive.

solutions that serve and empower very large groups of people. To us, this work is

| ]
A e re ALEgElise it directly affects communities in positive ways.
- BV y Y i 4
= et
pe O d d s

B8 and profitability are a direct result of the value we put on our relationships,

Website Redevelopment

Proposal foty?ﬁ 9 v s
iew and Summa
Shepherdsown, Weét 5¥gqliaerv " v

To iy Bovd - To WEAPQYs JBRsERGEIalZes in building and hosting websites and software applications for local government
|.,E5|a\§_%nﬁges, special districts, utility companies, non-profits, and other organizations. Our target customer

Frokis Johei i\tcl’ﬁ)ﬁi"’-'ﬁ%é \(geiPs_lte that is attractive, accessible on all devices, ADA compliant, secure, easy to update, and

at is out it';ed'with ALL applications that a local government agency will need to help their organization

Vaid unt! Degemogs Slraltheir constituents.

Cover Letter

Company Profile

Table of Contents

e EvoGov, Inc, is a privately-held Colorado € Corporation.
Exaciitive Summa-ryOur Corporation information is enline with the Secretary of State of Colorado, and can be seen here.

¢’ Our Federal Tax ID Number is 47-4542647

« All of our employees are W2 employees that are USA Citizens who live and work in the USA,
Company Overview Since launching our new cloud-hased government platform in 2013, we now manage 397 customer

domains.

Project Team

——- (" C:i:lpr;lld Services EvoGov Specializes In
gy = s

Web Development Programming, Software, and Technical Services
AD = Mobile / Responsive Website * Amazon Web Services (AWS) Cloud Infrastructure
Design o AWS 53 - Cloud Storage
So e Intranets / Secure Portals o AWS Route 53 - Secure, Distributed DNS for Cloud
e Graphic Design apps
¢ Logo Design and Branding o AWS Certificate Manager - SSL Security
Cu * Website Usability Best Practices o AWS Cloudfront Content Delivery Network (CDN)
De ¢ Project Management o AWS Elastic Beanstalk {Auto-Scaling Web Servers)
¢ ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance * Python Programming - Application Development
Clii = Live Staff Training ¢ PostgreSQL - Database Programming
* Google Analytics * |SON API Development - Integration with your servers
e Form and PDF Automation e Mapping - GIS/ ESRI / ARCGIS / OpenLayers / Google Maps
I ¢ Data Import/Export o Off-Site Data Backup
* Consulting
We
Su

& Download PDF version

Project Team
Project Team Roles

The USA-Based, professional team at EvoGov that will be working on your project have dedicated roles to
ensure that your project is done on time and is of the highest quality. By working on multiple aspects of
your project at the same time, we can typically build websites in as little as 90 days.

+ Project Manager - Your assigned project manager will interview your core team, and your individual
department heads to make sure that all areas of your organization have an opportunity to improve
their areas of the website. Your EveGov Project Manager will follow-up with your team and schedule
regular meetings to review the progress and deadlines for your project.

¢ Lead Designer - Each of our website projects is custom-built to ensure that it aligns with your vision
for the new website, your branding, your values, and so that it is easy to navigate and maintain. Your



"r

P
She
To: s

Fr

Tat

Exi

Co

Project Team

lead designer from EvoGov will incorperate your brand colors, statements, fonts, and photography to

enforce your brand identity with the new website.

nager - Migrating and updating content in websites can be very time-consuming and
dous care to accurately move your website content into the new website, with

DA compliance and Search Engine Optimization {SEQ).

¢ Trainer - We provide a combination of live training meetings (not limited to 2 days), on-demand

&p‘fc

training videos, training manuals, and live support to ensure that all of your staff is supported and can

easily update the website.

Project Management Software

At EvoGov, we utilize Basecamp, a very popular web-based project management system to communicate
with your team regarding your project's tasks, deadlines, files, and feedback. Basecamp

* Includes a drag-and-drop upload area where your team can share files with our development team.
= All Tasks are tracked and may have notes on them.

* Project Bulletin Board allows discussions about any topic related to the project.

¢ Automatic Emails - updates we make to your project in Basecamp are automatically emailed to your

team.

EvoGov CMS - The Municipal
Website Platform

ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance

social Media ntfiM@GOV CMS - The Municipal Website Platform
Custom, Respork¥igaivanebsite will be FULL-FEATURED AND EASY TO MANAGE

Design

We offer the best Content Management System in the industry. Our system is automatically updated each
Client Referencggonth with new features as part of your hosting fees. Other companies charge a licensing fee on top of
hosting to update their platforms. EvoGov's hosting fee includes all of our applications for one fee.

Implementation and Timeline

Website Hosting « wevuiny

Support & Trainin§

Alerts - For emergency and important messages,

ou can create static messages, popup panels, and

crolling alert tickers across your home page,

department pages;or all pages of your website,
Discuss {4)

Email E-News with SMS - Create as many email
and SMS topics that you need, and send mass

& DownloadrRREsagsipmessages to your recipient groups from

the CMS.

Evo311™ Request Tracker - EvoGov offers you an
integrated (and better) request tracking system
than our competitors because it supports
UNLIMITED USERS for your staff and residents. Our
maobile-ready 311 system automatically routes
requests from your residents directly to the
departments you chose. Includes a custom map
showing all public requests in your area.

Payments - We recently merged our payments
module with our form builder, enabling you to
build your own custom payment forms in the
website. Credit cards can be charged in real-time
with our PCI compliant solution.,

Calendars - Create unlimited calendars for
department pages, groups, and the home page of
your website.

EvoBids™ - Manage your Bid and RFP process
online and in your website securely. Many
customizable settings to control how and if
Planholder lists are displayed and whether or not
bidders can submit their bids online or not,
Submitted bids are protected from early viewing by
your staff to keep the bidding process secure,
Vendors can sign up for automatic notifications of
bids. No additional license fee is required for
EvoBids.



EvoBids™

& s is
M s
N B Cates
, oot
Website Redevelopme
Proposal for The Town ™
Shepherdsown, West Vir
To: Amy Boyd - Town of Sheperds 4 &
West Virginia : y
From: John McKown - EvoGay, =
Vald untll: December 31,202 =
. F
Cover Letter
News Areas - Create unlimited news areas for Blogs - Create unlimited blogs in your website,
Table of Contenisyour home page, and for every department and Blogs can also have their own domain names.
group that you enter into the CMS. Cross-post to
Executive Summ%n_gultipie news area,s and show them directly on
partment-specific home pages. Push news posts
directly to social media or mass messaging.
Company Qverview
Community Spotlight™ - Especially since the HR Job Posting Manager - Post job openings on
Project Team  Covid-19 Pandemic, your website needs to your website and have them appear automatically
highlight your social programs and services at the /jobs URL in your website. Candidates can

rominenﬂy on your home page. This highlighted  apply online using custom forms for different

EvoGov CMS - The MINCPEL won't get pushed off of the home page  positions.

Website Platformjiya your typical news posts.

ADA [ WCAG 2.1 Compliance Evo311™ is our integrated request tracking system that is built-into our CMS.

Social Media Intagration

Custom, Responsive We Make 3 Request
Design

Client References

Implementation and Tim

Website Hosting & Secu

Support & Training

Aevo3il

& Download PDF v e, e povrered by evo3i1 - www.evo3 §.com



An EvoGov first, our built-in
reating browsable archives a
e Evo File Browser™ to as

ike, and since there are no
storage limits you can create agenda archives that

Website Remgngflecades in very little time.

Proposal for The Town of
Shepherdsow:, West Virginia
To: Amy Boyd - "MW&I%MEFHH&‘.S‘,‘PP"“ - Our Meeting system
West \g}émg]atically supports web meetings like; Zoom®,
From: Johin MGKE..QRT%M&SHPI%@! Microsoft Teams®, Amazon

o — Chime®, others. Displays your web meetings
Lo vﬂﬁ’ igﬁt%d fields and links to your web
meetings. Links to your zoom meetings appear
right on your home page, making it simpler than
ever to join your meetings.

Table of Contents

Cover Letter

Meeting Dashboard - Imagine a simple interface
that shows ALL meetings for ALL of your groups
(departments, boards, committees, commissions,
etc.) for ALL years, and that shows ALL meeting
files. Meeting file content is also indexed and is
searchable. The meeting dashboard displays
instantly as soon as you add meetings to the
website.

Web Form Builder - EvoGov is the only local
government design firm that creates database
tables automatically for ALL forms in your website.
Soin addition to emailing form submissions and
sending form alerts with SMS messages, we also
store all submissions in a database that you can
easily export from. The form submissions can't be
edited by your staff, making them compliant for
FOIA,

EvoAgendas™ - Coming in 2021, EvoGov will be rolling out our complete agenda management suite with

Executive Summ

Y¥liit-in support for YouTube timeline links to your agenda topics, voting, social media integration, ipad

interface for Councils and Commissioners, and more. All customers will get EvoAgendas™ at no
Company Overviesdditional cost, saving many thousands over other solutions. This will put an end to using ugly iFrames in
your website to show agendas, videos, and meetings from a third party application.

Project Team

MS - The Munici
EVOG_OV . 'll—?le Wﬁ%agler - Drag and drop many files at once
Website Platform.

into the website from any page or application. WE
support very large files and there is no storage
ADAWCAG 2 0ifralikengtere is with CivicPlus and others.

Social Media Intagration

Photo Carousels - Create slideshows not only for
Custom, Respongjue, WWelisi® page, but for department hame pages
Design and other interior pages in your website,

Client Referenced1@Ps With Layers - Create inlimited maps for your
parks department, facilities, and economic
development. Choose your own pushpin icons to

Implementation apch LimeinGifferent landmarks.

Website Hosting & Security

Support & TraininPt:nlls / Surveys - Post surveys in your website and
PP Ehart the results publicly or privately.

Discuss (4)

& Downloa

Department-Level CMS - Each of your
departments can manage their own home pages
and content that is assigned to their department.

Slideshows - Add a slideshow to the top of your
department pages,

Key Employee Contacts - show your department
heads with their photos, name, titles, and contact
information prominently on the sides of your
department pages.

Image Editor - Our media manager has a built-in
image editor that automatically compresses,
sharpens, crops, flips, rotates, and resizes images
to fit your needs. Images that are inserted into
pages are automatically resized and compressed to
keep your pages loading fast,

Photo Galleries - Create a photo gallery quickly
from a directory of uploaded photos.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) Manager -
Create an animated accordion layout of topics to
show many questions and answers on a single
page, with a built in search engine right on the
page. Supports rich content like videos, PDFs,
images, and more.

Home Page Drone Video - For a limited time,
EvoGov provides FREE home page video editing for
your drone videos and other videos that you
provide to us. Editing is included with your design
fee, and Vimeo Pro Streaming service is indluded
with your hosting.

Action Button Builter - Create action buttons on
your department home pages for your most
important actions, forms, and links.

Side Menu Management - Departments can
design their own side menus and arrange their
links as they choose,

Site-Wide Directory - An automatic directory for
all departments and staff is generated in your
website. You have the ability to hide people that
you don't want to display.



pdate the description, map,
menities, and more for all of
e custom map layers for them

) Amenities - National Park Service amenity icons
Website Redpugl@RR@Nr location editor, making it easy to
Proposal forshaw frwamdble amenities at each facility.

Shepherdsown. West Virainia
T Amy Boyd - To
West Virginia_ 3 .
e Jokin icKc%ﬁg%vEc%erﬁcEd't page content directly or paste
; from Mic ft Word into your page. Code View
Vald artk Deceriet 5 ibility checker are built-i
ption and accessibility checker are built-in.

Side Menus - Use the automatic side menus, or
your department's content side menu, or a custom
cSide menu for the maximum flexibility.

Cover Letter

Table of Content

Automatic Versioning - we save all of your
Executive Summguublished saves to content forever. And you can
roll back to a previous version if you make a

Company Overvidhistake.

Search Engine Optimization (SEO) - All pages use
friendly URLs, and we provide dedicated fields for
SEO keywords so that your website will appear
EvoGov CMS - Théghieniaarch engine resuits.

Website Platform S ;
Google Translate - Built-in language translation

with Google Translated into many languages.
ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance

Project Team

Social Media Infsysawon
Role-Based Security - Add the appropriate roles

Custom, Respmgﬁlg%ggﬁpnur CMS users and all of their security
Design is setup with one step.

Full Design Code Access - Our competitors don't
Client Referencesllow you to edit your design code, But with our
built-in HTML and CSS editors, your designers can

Implementation ARV ful|access to the front-end design of your
website. All code is also versioned.

Website Hosting

Support & Trainingull Design Code Access - Qur competitors don't
allow you to edit your design code. But with our
built-in HTML and CSS editors, your designers can
have fOll 38244 to the frant-end design of your
website. All code is also versioned.

& pownloapeeticignand Agenda Dashboard

Facility Booking - We include a REAL booking
engine for your facilities with an integrat

Custom Parks Home Page and Domain - See our
options area of this proposal for pricing on a
custom parks and recreation home page.

YouTube Player Embed Button - Add YouTube
videos to any page by simply pasting the URL to
the video.

Content Scheduling - Schedule and automatically
expire content at dates that you pre-set.

Safe Deletions - When an employee deletes
content, it is hidden but still available in the system
for administrators to undelete.

Social Media Integration - Integration with
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and more.

Traffic Reports - Google Analytics works with our
CMS and we can help you to install it easily.

Advanced Logging - Logging and reporting of
sensitive activity, such as data exports and editing
of sensitive pages. All 311 activity is tracked.

Custom Theming Engine - Build Sub-sites, custom
landing pages for departments, and more with
domain names and SSL right in the same CMS.

Custom Theming Engine - Build Sub-sites, custom
landing pages for departments, and more with
domain names and SSL right in the same CMS

Show ALL of your meetings from multiple calendars, for all years, with all files, videos, audio, and more.
Dedicated file fields for Agendas, Minutes, Resolutions, Ordinances, Bill Lists, Staff Reports, and Packets,
This interface is built automatically from your meeting calendars, so you never have to add PDFs to a web

page manually again!

Meetings and Agendas are displayed multiple ways. The Meeting Dashboard shows them all.



'ﬁ)}lll_ﬁf?i/} of

r— _— "
utley = & & @m Y ©
Teranitanen 1one Depatmeale  Bovness  Resdests  Covemmen  Communty  Roeresan i ba )
Meeting Dashboard
Search This Page

. Board of Commissioners Meetings
Website Redevelopni .

Proposal for The Tow . ) )
Shepherdsown, West V] Historic Preservation Committee Meetings

2021

2081

Tei. Ay Boyd - Town of Sheper:

Orle & Time Hame Resaurens

Wes! Virginia oy iacutey 1) P ¥ TR - Mt mens vavasoat
From: Join McKown - EvoGe T s 1112 pel
Valid unt! Decemier 31, 2 to Fove v 1 e o ——— B -
minuces
P ke 2.18.21 ner
Cover Letler Prumane wireh 1 £ 39} A e o e bws Ixu!:m ogmlm
o Rereameg 13 ¥4 4601 3976
st i o T
; M vt 3181
Table of Contents Attachmens
PR R “r
o Bepes 8 1o ‘

291 Brrs Rad Fot | snoek Aot ey 59
85 Chir EN SLewet B Lk

Executive Summary Aesslations

MPL Resalutions - 318

Company Overvefie Browser Widget

Create archives of thousands of PDFs or other files in your website in just minutes. File browsers can
include custom searches for specific data for custom use cases. Drag bulk files to the media library, then
add a file browser to a page by pointing to the file folder of your choice and it s live. This eliminates making

EvoGov CMS - The MUBICHRSE jinks, saving your staff countless hours of work,
Website Platform

Project Team

” . ? : E ooy
SEATREES)
= bigenis 3
= t Al wol 9
Social Media Int  m 1 —_ | o
: legal So P, 1y FaG S e
= ) ¢ Aiepart (e pot SETT)
Custom, Respor = &l
Design = B A Re [ P { T 1
: ¢ i 6
: -k * ™ B
Client Reference o | : : ot
Sy
o : & -
Implementation  ss i it E5aabby: ot xhe
] 3 acf t b
-2
L < Tew “g Jetean
Website Hosting : " YER A a
™ . " R
]
Support & Traini.., )
Budget Pie CRart
Discuss (4)

EvoGov will help you to display your financial data on your website in a meaningful way to help foster
financial transparency. Data is displayed with an interactive pie chart, which includes customizable
information panels for each budget item.

& Download PDF version
Financial Transparency (City Budget)

2019 Total Appropriations $31,334,134.83

TOTAL SALARIES - $13,932,518.08
Revenue & Finance: §1
Pubi: Safety. s
Public Works: $1 000 #0584
Total: £13 937518 0%

Frravcal Transarency|

Download the Detaded 2012 Budget (PDF)

Mapping Features

= Create unlimited maps with any combination of layers.
= Parks maps include turn-key amenities for each park.



* Business directory is built-in, for creating economic development downtown business maps easily.
* All map data is stored in a PostGIS database for possible import/export with ESRI and ArcGIS.

Proposal fi
She

To:s

Fr

TN

A Cafiocka Pk 1 Ay 1901 Crawnes foas. (i 3-acre peiohbestood padk leciee
ot b, barbacus urits ard pinic tatkes.

Shorw b

Tat

Ext

Co
Pr¢

Ew
We

ADA | WCAG 2.0 Compliance
Sacial Media Integration

Custom, Responsive Website
Design

cientrereencADA / WCAG 2.0 Compliance
implementation f@MERAE Migration with ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance

EvoGov will perform WCAG 2.0 compliance checks for all content that we create or migrate from cther
Website HostingvéeBeiteatiVe can also assist with posting policies and complaint statements which should greatly limit your
legal exposure to ADA compliance claims. Since adding content that isn't compliant is very easy for any
iniiger to do, maintaining full compliance of your content requires a 3rd party monitoring service to help

Support & Traini ; : : ’ i o :
identify and fix compliance issues quickly. This is an added expense that small agencies don't always need,

but that will provide'peace of mind. See below for more information on these services.

Discuss {

Accessibeg ADA Compliance Software Suite

EvoGov, Inc. will integrate the Accessibe® accessWidget (ADA Compliance software suite) into the website

& Download PBPRersibiis project. Accessibe® is sold as a monthly subscription service that starts at about $50 per
month depending on the size of your website and your website traffic. The Accessibe fee is paid directly to
Accessibe®.

What is Accessibe's accessWidget?

AccessiBe's accessWidget is the leading Al-powered web accessibility solution that makes websites
accessible to people with disabilities, and compliant with the WCAG, ADA, and other accessibility
legislation. By using Al and automation, accessWidget significantly reduces costs and time, making
web accessibility achievable for businesses of all sizes, from small to large enterprises.

WCAG 2.1 ADA Title 1l Section 508
COMPLIANCE COMPLIANCE COMPLIANCE
IS 5568 ACA/AODA EAA/EN 301548

COMPLIANCE COMPLIANCE COMPLIANCE



Accessibe® Pricing

B accessWidget
Maonthly Bili »g Annual Billing
The leading Al-Powered, auiomated web ac:essibily, WCAG & ADA complance solution
Standard Large Huge Enterprise
Website Re )
Fur websites under For websites under For websites under v Ko paga limit
Proposal fo %0 peges 1080 pages — -+ Custom legal terms
Shepherdsow + Testing acoaunts
$49 o $149 /o $199 /monn v Tailores SLA
To: Amy Eayd - To v Suiion Engaserng
West
No credit card requirad No credit card requirad No cradit card requirad Starts at $950/mo

From: Jehn McK

Valid uni! Den w START 7-DAY THIAL » START 7-DY TRIAL & CONTAZTUS >

Cover Letter
Websites with 100Ks monthiy vootoos requira the Enterpraa poan, O ersa price is based on page count or's

Tat HOW DO WE COUNT PAGES? ~

Exi
Each plan includes all features :

Co

@, Accessibi 'y statemart = Compliance with Seraen-resder & ﬁ Aosessibilty intarface
Pre L Bcenificaton 8[B  wCAG, ADA, EAA S (B keyhosrd nacgation B for e and design s

= more == adyustmants

Ewi G Free 7-day triel no 'ﬁ Monthly sccesebility 9 Automatic gely @ Dedicatad litignbun
We crec* card required i comp' ance sudils monitoring and scans Suppo-i Package
AD
So
Cu
De

Cliem neicicives
Implementation and Timeline
Website Hosting & Security

Support & Training

Social Media Integration

Discuss (4}
EvoGov will integrate all of your social media feeds into your website!

*Dowmoa‘r%? itr;?mmore important ever to use all of your communication channels ta communicate with your
PERIKEE SR customers. EvoGov makes it easy to share your important information across all of your
social media feeds, email newsletters, and your website.

Facebook Feed Integration

EvoGov will integrate your Facebock Feed into your website so that it looks great on any device.



O Avyal i

To. Ay Boyd - Tol
West

From: Jo'n McK]
Vealud unt! De:

olaiy

.u ] w -

> wt 3 — ‘ e eaae

ey ol & () movt revdemy ot s () rore sy
o \ "

Cover Letter
Table of Conten

Executive Summary

Company overib@U Tube® Video Channel Integration

EvoGov will integrate your municipality's YouTube channel into your website so that visitors can see the
Project Team  videos and live streams that you wish to share, This will make your employee's jobs easier becase you
won't have to manually entervideo links into your website.
EvoGov CMS - The Municipal

Website Platform ;
The City of Evans Colorado's Home Page Showing their meeting and video channel feed in real-time:

ADA /WICAG 2.1 (r.a Evarn C ot

Social Media Int|

Custom, Respo|

Design / _
Client Referencg 'i ,}’ "' ' Hl ii.i ! .
Implementation

Website Hosting & Security

Support & Trainislag!:'tagram® Feed Integration

EveGov will integrate your moderated Instagram feed directly into your website. This enables you to share
your im&gﬁigsa(gfﬁ automatically have them appear across multiple websites. The system can be configured

& Download PDF version



She
To s

Tat

Ext

Co

Pre

to also show your own hashtags with your feeds.

Follow us on Instagram

EvoGov CMS - The Municipal
Website Platform

ADA/ WCAG 2.0 Compliance

Social Media Integration

custom, Respo IS EQIM, Responsive Website Design

Design

Your New Website Will Be: BEAUTIFUL & MOBILE READY

Client Rafaranras

Imy

We

Su

Our mobile-ready designs are custom-built using your existing branding, colors, and logos. We can
also assist with creating new design assets that you can use in your other branding efforts. We provide
video editing if you would like a video on your home page. Videos can also be used on custom department
home pages.

Responsive, Standards-Based Design

Your Project Manager and Graphic Designer will meet with you to discuss your design goals, branding,
color scheme, logos, home page layout, navigation menus, and more. We will then meet with your
department heads as well to help guide them on creating dynamic home pages for their departments,
complete with action buttens, forms, FAQ areas, and more.

EvoGov offers unlimited layout options and many pre-built compenents, your website will be custom-built
for you without extra time and expense. When you share with us the elements you like on other website
(no matter who built them), we can bring those elements together in your website to fine-tune your design
layout.

Client References
Nutley, New Jersey



The Township of Nutley new Jersey has been a client of EvoGov for many years, and we recently revamped
their website in 2022. Existing EvoGov customers get generous discounts on website redesign projects and

a is necessary to refresh the design of websites that we already host. This makes it
A DOSSIE (Ten o
= eVogov

ur website quickly after the design ages.

Website Redevelopment %
Proposal for The Town of )
Shepherdsown, West Virginiaw..

To: Amy Boyd - Town of Sheperdslown,
West Virgnia
From: John McKawn - EvaGovy, Inc.
Vahd until December 31, 2022

Cover Letter

e

LATE NIGHT puanmonth
B0 8 CAYLICENSE m._‘:
Table of Contents o ki) % o
-
i e e
Executive Summary [ e o e P ——
el oy M e iy e g ety ko

Company Overview

Project Team

EvoGov CMS - The Municipal
Website Platform

Rocreation News. .- Township Calendar b
[ T S RS S ———— g s n
ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance
() -
T T r— ]
roivcrrun e

Social Media Integration

e Y
=

Custom, Responsive Website i @.&.......(.__.._

Design

Tetals FacABaN RGO Dites Senasiiea

Client References

Implementation and Timeline

Website Hosting & Security

Support & Training
Phillips County Kansas
Discuss (4L
phillipscountyks.org

Small county with only a 5000 population size. Video home page created by EvoGov.

EvoGov merged three existing websites into one new website.
& Download PDF Versiom g

. USDA .
%
Phillips County Us”-'aﬁ -
nhounces m
congcv Detalls of Giract 9 EaoD
Business Grant Asslslance 1o RESTARY KANSAS
Applianan Farmars through the

TAX CREDIT PROGRAM
Caranavirus Food 9 £ere nosD st

Asslstanca Program
s e o Farsaten s ih SR s aan L
itk

sascurns 10 e
e e A N R bt Foh Wit 418 FAZE kS qrrte
[oaun prustze 10 b o




Del Norte County, California
small county on the northern coast of California. They approached EvoGov with an

]
A, LIELNE L F
aevuggv asked us if we could build a website for them in less than two weeks because their

asibeing shut down. We were able to get a working demo website up and running in a
couple of days, then we trained their staff to migrate content, and we worked with their staff to get the site
. live and manage all of the DNS and other IT setup tasks. While we obviously can't do this for every project,
Website Regl V&%Sgﬁemomtrates how modular and quickly we can build an impressive website that works on
Proposal fog T id@wndat easy to manage, even in a crisis.
Shepherdsown, West Virginia

C;_i ontact:
To: Ay Boyd - TGl SR GROEACE .
RO USW‘CD'anMC orkle, Director
esl Yirgima
_ Con of Del Norte
From: John McKgwn - Eve -0{. %Cl .
: ., Department'o nformation Technology
Vaidunti: D= 36061 Stret, Suite 12
Crescent City, CA 95531

Cover Letter  (707) 464-7207
Table of Contents

Executive Summary

Company Overview

Project Team

EvoGav CMS - The Municipal
Website Platform

ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance
Social Media Integration

Custom, Responsive Website
Design

Client References
Implementation and Timeline
Website Hosting & Security

Suppert & Training

Discuss (4)

& Download PDF version



Cover Letter

v wirra s % BT L Ty (TR
Brea ey ATtaoag Ml

Table of Content

Project Team

EvoGov CMS -~
2 County Newss o
Website Platforn 4 -
* ap
VOTE 4

ADA/WCAG 21 @ CALIFORNIA - i L o
Social Media Int ) ) )

Public irnited o sttend a wirual PUEIE HEITH OVt Tos Face Sept 1o, 3921 Caiiomiy Beditr cvng Bl Narte County Regonal

ety LD ey, anhinl CuDemanan! et vt tion e peteny
Custom, Respor . : : s
Design St e e e i e et R o
Client Reference

Community Events ors pumny Meetigs e
0 WA Vistus Benting R L

Implementation o ot
Website Hosting b LS S

Support & Traini

Popular Links
COPTI Intarmatan

Conrnty Coow
Lmsrgeey Servces
# Loge

Contstin

Ventnor City New Jersey

ventnorcity.org
Coastal beach community located in New Jersey, Stackable features is the latest way to add functionality to
home pages, similar to boston.gov



[ ive o |

Ventnor City cE
vt § orvameors | samers 1 oo ] v " werro ]

Website Redevelopm
Proposal for The Tow|
Shepherdsown, West Vi PR
To: Amy Boyd - Town of Sheperd
WestVirgnia
From: Jonn Mclown - EvoGov c - -
Valii urs: Decenber 31, 20) L . . R LA »_‘r':-;
Cover Letter y £ &;a. N
) e
Table of Contents
Executive Summary How Can We Help? News Spotlight ™~ Department Directory
Company Overview e,
Project Team onee

EvoGov CMS - Riversiehe County California Clerk Recorder

Website Platform |
RivcoACR.org

With a population of over 2 million people, Riverside County is the 4th largest county in California. EvoGov
ADATWCAG 2.8 GRPRESNESsite for the Clerk Recorder's office and In 2022 we refreshed the site with an all-new design,

content design, the latest ElasticSearch search engine technology and a new ADA/WCAG compliance suite.
Social Media Integration

CUStom‘ Respn OUnty Of Riversite
Design '\ § ASSESSOR-COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER

Client Reference
Implementation
Website Hosting

Support & Traini] [Fe

Valley County Idaho

Complete website redesign, content migration, and training.



Valley Coun

IDAHO

Visiting Valiey County

Website Re
Proposal fo
Shepherdsow
Te:: Ary Boyd - To
West

From: John Mck]
Valid un:

Cover Letter
Table of Conten
Executive Sumn

©IS POATAL MINUTES & E-NEWS SIGHUR

Cnmpany Overv WATCH MEETINGS. ONLINE SERVICES CAREER
uve OPPORTUNMES ACENDAS

Project Team > .
S T LW e ‘ j
L L i \

CLEAK, RECORDER, COunH EOAD & BRIDGE
AUDITOR

EvoGov CMS -
Vebsite Platfor

Assossor Map

County Budget Detention Facility Calendar & Record Road Malntenanee
Appeals Process

Election Informatlon Drivers Licente JOArh Bashibbar]
ADAJWCAG 2. Praparty Assessmant Uauer Catering Sarvices Pay Court Fees Approach in Caunty
Proparty Tax Reliet forig e becantis Online Right-f-Way

Mator Vehicles Marfiage Ucenses Requast Court Assi [~ in

. . i oOffice Right-af-Wa,
Social Media Int] PhAnIg & Zoning Passports Vuilnerasle g %
Map Population Registry Jury Duty Area Webcams

Public informatlen

Code of Ordinances Réqurat Victim Resources. Court Services Road Reports

7 {Probatian)
Tax Payment Info Recarding Foes Evacuation Pollcy . Snow Removal
Custom, Respo Recreation Safety Communiy Sxeice Future Constructlon
Design
Client Reference Pecoled Links
News Events & Meetings
0 Couray Facabook
Implementation O shoritf Faseboni
WM Area Webcarns Perzanal Use Mushroom Seasen
e Crooeming Reports & Maps T
We A Ordinances P
& Parcel Viewsr reat & Fagette Liatineal | Foenssal ise Pacritg pon oot require Harsestors moy gaiher
L ¢ hint ¢ corday b & e A Ay Iy
B Planning & Zonkng et oubiy 4 tooe
S "
o &3 Recyciing Take the Internet Speed Tost
Aprei
Asa e font VO Al 5 £ oubly, e 0 Mol 50 14T ys YR Oy Conarty 38 Pt
of the \West © * "5 b dwr Nex % Taskftere b 8 reda 4 pev d 1St TRt e
tiart 3oy thase Ay Y




A evogov

ementation and Timeline

Website Redevelopment

Proposal folYolr Prepedt will be: COMPLETED ON TIME
Shepherdsown, West Virginia

To: Amy Boyd - Town of Shepera&éRFov will migrate all content from your existing website to your all-new website.

25t
From: John MeK] I8 shiesy o v IWest & ), SURSCIIEE

Val'« unti. Eﬁwmﬁv e
o

e

Executive Sumn
f

[
B . o IWN
b NEW TO NEED 1% FYN
Company Overv 1 TOWN? FORMS? MA @
‘ A varety 6f LIST
P [y S nero a0
\ 23

Project Team .
Gulda to Public Parking in Shepherdstown e

U Water Bill Payments & Electronic Billing Site

Town News E
Invitation For Blds - Cullison Park @

EvoGov CMS -
Website Platfo

ADA/WCAG 2,

Asgp a Unemtagre dwd

Social Media In

Custom, Respo

Dess’gn COVID RELIEF RENT / UTILITY ASSISTANCE FOR

SHEPHERDSTOWN RESIDENTS

Calendar

Vi Ui ssmt

3 Ao 5, VG L
Client Referencq . NI WO | e
- " Tt 54 st o
LVE 1y b g o ot "
Implementation
Shepherdstown Market House
Asgum 3, Xip Uneamagre e
Website Hosting | e rtinoon hs stend 0 meoni Pt S "R v e Marm
B Tha o of the Dage 1% 19 proveds eeialss 1 ha Mirkel Moosegeg 4540 0m Then Find us on facebook
o W iy i bRy I et . Hvprerey W B [ — -
Support & Train g el s
Comprehensive Pian Review Commitiss Created — Volunteers P Py !_llhhlnnn
Needed ; -
. tr wavired . Shepherdsiown, West ()
Thwe Srmpirastvnoam Plyrwng Oor ¥ T SrARR A pehe st S e AL Virginta
rena praene v ok 1 & et Py e - 4

g p e Pee WY St Cote e and wake (E377 P the

& Download PDF version

Smaller projects can be completed in 90 days or lass. The sooner that you can provide us with your
photography, updated written content, videos, etc. the better. This will keep your project moving forward.

Project Stages

1. Kickoff Meetings with Content Submission Deadlines

Your EveGov Project Manager meets with your core team and/or with individual departments to gather
your design requirements and provide examples of current trends. We will let your team know what

collateral we will need to build your design.
2. Design Meetings

We create your new design, then host a meeting with your team to discuss and refine it. If your team
can't provide us with photography, video, or design assets, your design will be more generic. Good

photography can really make a design pop.
3. Content Migration

We move your website content from your old website to our platform, and new written content

submitted by your team is integrated.
4, Staff Logins and Training

Your staff that will manage your department's website content are provided with credentials and

training resources so that they can learn to manage the new website.



5. Quality Control & IT Setup
We will review your new website for accuracy, compliance, and mobile performance. Your IT team will

- s with access to your domain name and DNS so that your new site can launch on
& eveaoy
- ey

¥Website launches, the hosting service fee begins.

Website Reﬂgu?mﬁm

Proposal for The Town of

Pri C%-? rtup and Kickoff Meetings
ShepherdsowBUW% ;E{fi‘gfgl@pically provide just one kickoff meeting for new projects. We provide as many as you
To. Amy Boyd - Toeed Sterendtipesuccess. EvoGov will conduct individual kickoff meetings with the your departments as
Westivegessary with a maximum of ten attendees per meeting. Each kickoff meeting will be one (1) hour in
From. John Mcilengtifvaid, mill be held via a Zoom meeting. The kickoff meeting agenda can be viewed here:
Vald unt: Dediber A1vapapvogov.com/kickoff-meeting.

Ensuring Project Success with Project Management
Cover Letter  Our exclusive project guides that detail how be build great websites on time and within budget can be
viewed at https://www.evogov.com/welcome. These guides will assist your teams and departments to get
Table of Cunlenig:e most of your new website. The data, design collateral, and input we need from your team are listed
there, Once your project begins, we will provide logins to our online project management portal, where

your team can upload files, view tasks and progress, and interact with the EvoGov Team.
Executive Summary - " A
Improve Usability with Navigation Design

One of the reasons clients redesign their websites is because their customers complain that they can't find
Company Overvigitent on the website easily. To solve this commen challenge, EvoGouv utilizes an interactive online tool for

menu design that helps visualize the structure of the website without being distracted by the graphic
Project Team  design. Your team will get a login to this system and can participate at a level that they are comfortable

with. Some clients are very involved in site structure design, while most depend on EvoGov to use best
EvoGov CMS - ﬂ(@%ﬁi?ﬁé\en creating the flowcharts for the upgraded website,

Website Platforr€reating Mobile-Ready Custom Graphic Design
EvoGov will create a design prototype concept for your team's approval before the new website is built.
ADA [ WCAG 2{{%@;&&%&'8&!@ design concept is done using an online prototyping tool that your team will gain access
to. During our design meetings with your team, we will use this tool to review the design requirements and
__adjust the design to your needs. We have may layouts to help the process move along more quickly, and
Social Media Intpggatodre many elements of our applications that are interchangeable. These include; calendars, news
areas, alert areas, slideshows, video, action buttans, and more. Once the design layouts are ready, we
Custom, ResporBdamgiitthese into our website software to build the new website.

Design Conduct Department Meetings
EvoGov will meet with your departments that have specific content needs and design requirements.

Client Referencqgixrate Website Content
EvoGov will migrate all of the content that you deem current and valid that is within your current website,
Implementation v theefesv website. All updated content provided to us by your team will also be integrated into the new
website.

Website Hostingi&t8gputly Applications
Some projects require specific application setup steps, like our Evo311 request tracking system, and other
Support & TrainiAgPlications that are built into our platform. EvoGov will meet with your team to get those systems setup
and offer detailed instructions and training.

ADA Cojppliange, Site Testing, and Quality Control

The new website will be built on a temporary domain name so that your team can view it and interact with

it. Before the website launches, our team will perform quality checks on the website, While we do scan

our website for ADA compliance, we strongly recommend that you opt to integrate a low-cost ADA

< Downloa SRBIYEA¥E % cript into your website that will help your visitors with disabilities. There are several vendors
we use for this, and you pay them a menthly fee directly,

Staff Training

EvoGov will provide up to six live training for your staff via online Zoom meetings. These meetings are
typically one hour long, and have a maximum of 10 participants. Departments that have heavy content
management requirements should schedule their own training meetings with EvoGov. Live web training
requires a phone, a desktop computer (not an ipad), and breadband Internet connection, Meetings may be
recorded so that you can use them to train additional staff.

Domain Names, IT Support, and Site Launch

EvoGov works with thousands of organizations of all sizes to assist with domain name registration, DNS
(domain name servers), cloud hosting, and other [T-related services., For our government customers, we
assist in securing .gov domain names at no cost to your organization. Your website can have many domain
names associated with it, and we can also help in pointing one domain name to another. Each customer's
needs are a bit different, so it will be important to have your IT staff interface with cur team.

Basecamp Project Management



We utilize an online project management system called Basecamp that makes it easy to upload files to our
team and check on your website's progress. Any of your staff who wishes to be involved will receive a
login.

v
Propusal tor 1ne 1own o1
Shepherdsown, West Virginia
To: Amy Boyd - Town of Sheperdsiown,
Waest Virginia
From: John McKown - EvoGov, Inc.
Yalid urti. Decemiber 31, 2022

Cover Letter WebSite Hosting & Security
e TN Your New Website Will Be: SECURE & RELIABLE

ti ;
EHRTlv Sumn&?{, purpose-built municipal website management platform is hosted on Amazon Web Services (AWS).
Amazon AWS is the largest, most reliable cloud provider in the world.

Company Overview .
100% Uptime

Project Team We utilize multiple AWS data centers with auto-scaling servers and failover built-in. At busy times,
additional servers are added automatically so that your website remains fast. You won't outgrow your

EvoGov CMS - ‘Fhoesm.%icipal
Website Platiorrfirewall Included

We include a wide-area firewall that automatically protects your website from attackers. Your site is more
ADA | WCAG 2 8afemllamns:

Maximum Security with Free SSL Certificates

So ’
All domain names that EvoGov hosts come with free SSL security certificates. This gives you the "https"
address with the padlock in the browser and encrypts all of your website traffic across the Internet. Every
Cu site is secure.
De :
No Storage Limits
Clit Never worry about the storage of your website content again. Storage for your website auto-expands on
the cloud, and the storage is inexpensive and included with your website hosting.
Imy .Gov Domains and Additional Domain Names Supported

We have assisted many customers with acquiring and setting up new .gov domains. The process takes just
We a couple of days, and you own your domain name. If you need additional domain names for sub-sites we
can assist with that as well.

Su Our Technology Stack

You can read more about our hosting technology here: https://www.evogov.com/tech nology.

Support & Training
Your New Website Provider Will Be: RESPONSIVE

Live Web-Based Training Meetings

* Live planning and training meetings included for all of your departments.

* Live training meetings remain free of charge for up to 60 days after your site launches.

* Note - Since Covid-19 we now offer training meeting videos on demand, which have replace most of
our live training meetings. Your staff can train at their own pace at any time they wish using on-
demand videos.



 New staff hired long after the website is live can receive an hour of live hand-on training from our staff
for just $85.

€, you can get a live support answer to most any support request.

. Dgﬂng 202(3 during the pandemic, we answered thousands of chat requests with an average response
| EE S S ~"time of only 18 seconds,

Pi
She Email & Phone Support
Toii * Email and phone support are always free.
r
Live In-Person Training Meetings at your Office
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic we no longer offer live on-site training. We feel that web-based training is
Co less expensive and more effective anyhow.
Printed Manuals
Tat

* We are phasing-out printed manuals for many reasons. It is bad for the environment to print manuals,
and our software improves so rapidly that our printed manuals always became outdated very quickly.
Exi Just as people now watch YouTube tutorials on most any subject, we are moving to training videos with
embedded chapters that browse easily.

Co
Prc

Ew:
Website Platform

ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance
Social Media integration

Custom, Responsive Website

peson  COSt Proposal
Client Referencé¥our New Website Will Be: AFFORDABLE

Implementation ¥¥e lretiewedn up-front, transparent, all-inclusive project pricing. No upsells, no gimmicks. No automatic
price increases.

Website Hosting§ §8%¥me Development Fees

Support & TrainiRis is the cost ta design and build your new website, migrate content from your old website to the new
website, perform project management meetings with your staff, and setup the website hosting.

Websiqgigggqj‘?pment Fees:
* Total Project Cost: $7200

Payment Terms:
& Download PDF version

We will invoice your project in equal installments at the following milestones:

e Initial Payment: $2400 - invoiced when work begins.

= Second Payment: $2400 - invoiced when the design prototype is approved by the Client.

* Final Payment: $2400 - invoiced when scope of work in Exhibit A is complete, and training has been
provided. Please note that the new website will only made live on the Internet after final payment has
been received.

Recurring Service Fees (Website and Application Hosting)
Flat Website Hosting Fee:

s $150 per month.

¢ EvoGov Website Management System with all content management modules.

* Mass Email System - 30,000 emails per mo. ($1 per 1000 emails thereafter).

* Evo311 - Request Tracking Workflow System (pothole complaints and much more).
EvoBids - Bid and RFP online hidding system.

Unlimited support.

Automatic application upgrades.

No price increases for three years.



¢ Three domain name registrations (.gov domains must be paid directly from you to the .gov registrar)

Website Redevelopment
Proposal for The Town of
Shepherdsown, West Virginia

To: Amy Boyd - Town of Sheperdslown,
West Virginia
From: John McKewn - EvoGoy, Inc.

Valid ural: De@bﬁoﬁ?al En hancements

Cover Letter

Customizable Search Engine using ElasticSearch®

Table of Contenl @ EvoGov will integrate a customizable cloud-based search engine
u into your website in one day, which will provide your crganization

T — '.‘ e I aSt I C with _persnnalized analytics on how your residents use your
I website's search. With that information you can update your

website's action links and menus to make content that people

Company Overview search for easier to find. The solution also includes a multi-lingual
synonym engine so that you can enter search results for terms that are searched in Spanish and other

Project Team languages. The cost is very reasonable because it is cloud-based, and no other municipal website provider
can provide a website search engine that is this powerful, flexible, and customizable. The cost for a very

large mL_.IF_\iCiPa| customer of ours (2 million+ population) is under $80 per month.
EvoGov CMS - The Municipa

Website PlatforreNeck out this custom Elastic search engine in action at WWwW.rivcoacr.org

ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance Sample interface for customizing your website's search engine,

and seeing real-time analytics on what your visitors are searching for:

Social Media Intga
asrclireccom Scarch Analytics
L MV ACCOUN

= AWCWST 10, 2002 - AUGLET W 3002 ExeoRy

Custom, Respo

Design
Client Referency = 3121

o Anmynas
Implementation [ECEGT A

H"""Hu——g" / I
Bl oo -
Website Hostingi s ___\—mmugw/
Weights
Support & Traini s
61,630

Domains

cramTALE

e

Inatad Search

Engagement Modhles \

Most Popular Searches

< PR SOt s hed (o ¢ o

Insights
deed ]
I BX of all searches (763 of 2007 remurned 1o resi

proserty sedin

w1 fesd b

VIEW PR



Make your departments stand out with a CUSTOM HOME PAGE

- partments can really benefit by having their own home page. Without their own home
0o H?: 3 ':
2 VOO0
e ) .

display video, calendars, action buttons, social media, and other meaningful content.
[#S] even with their own domain names.

have ONE piatform for your city's website, while serving custom home pages for

These are great for;

Website Redpyaiopment. eation.
Proposal for Jheikewefiments.
Shepherdsowns Welide\WRirgisidment Sites.

o Amy Boyd - Tt wn ofiﬁeggr@_?f?m‘.*ms'
West \_f-__‘ggaunemlc Development.

From: Joan McKc:m ﬁéf\:(gg%&rfgfacrlltles.

Vatd unzl December 31, 2022
One-Time Cost: $1500 per sub-site home page and interior page design and implementation.
Recurring Hosting Fee: NO CHARGE (content hosted and managed from your main website),
Standalone Website Option: If you would like a separate standalone website for one of your
departments, we will quote that separately. Hosting and development is discounted if we build and host
Table of Contenigour main website.

Cover Letter

Executive Summary Sample Police Website: police.cityofmattawa.com

AR ey T

Company Overview

Project Team

EvoGov CMS - The Municipal
Website Platform

ADA/WCAG 2.0 Compliance

Social Media Integration

Custom, Responsive Website
Design

Cliv
Facebook

Imj}

We
s —
RTIBAR

Summary and Next Steps

Reasons to Choose EvoGov

1. Great customer support and continued updates to our platform so your website evolves.
2. Best cost-of-ownership value in the municipal web design industry.



3. All-inclusive hosting pricing with no increases for 5 years.
4. Great custom designs using the latest standards.
streaming is included.

Amazon Web Services (AWS).

ning and support now with real-time chat.

7 dBe its (users, storage, customers, bandwidth),

¢. Unlimited applications (calendars, news areas, slideshows, file browsers, and more),
Website Redgvglapmarktion Updates as long as you host with us.
Proposal for Ttied®oain ndmes included with hosting,

ShepherdsowﬁPMmA igRs for custom department home pages. Customers use these for; Parks, Police, Fire,

Economic Development, Libraries, and more!
T By Boyd - Toun of BhePedeMinent specific applications are included with your hosting. These include; such as
Vet ViBitdetings and agendas, mass email, bid and REP manager, 311 request tracking with workflow,
Frorm: Jshn Meiown nfai5HNE, b postings, and morel
Valid untl: Decerber 31, 2022

U, NO'U

Cover Letter  SChedule a Demo of our CMS

If you wouid like to see a an optional live demo of our software, please let us know and we will schedule a
Table of Contentweb demonstration for you.

Executive sumnaij€CUting Agreements with EvoGov

If the terms of this proposal are agreeable and you would like to engage with us to build your project,
Commany Nuenjstease let us know and we will send you our Master Services Agreement (MSA) for you to review and sign,

Once we are under contract, we will schedule your kickoff meeting and send you the first development
Pre invoice to get started.

Thank You!
Ewi

We We appreciate the opportunity to win your business and we look forward to working with you.

AD

: & evogov

De

Clir

Imy

Ve

Support & Training

Discuss (4)

& Download PDF version



Members Present:

Historic Landmark’s Commission November 14, 2022 — Regular Meeting

Draft Minutes

Carmen Slater; Keith Alexander; Tom Mayes; Nicole Saunders-Meske; Edith Thompson

Members Not Present:

Staff:
Visitors:

Call to Order:

Andy Beall

Barbara Uhler; Jim Schmitt; Chris Cafiero; Dow Benedict; Joseph Dolen; Glenn Oden

5:00 p.m.

Approval of Minutes: September 2022

Conflicts of Interest:

October 2022

None

Application Review:

Approved

Approved

Previous Applications:

Project Description

21-42

Melanie Jesteadt & Chris

Cafiero

310 W. German St.

Remove unstable 1.5 story and single-story shed-roof addltlons on rear of
primary structure. Replace with two-story addition. Application was approved
in 2021 but permit expired.

The applicant is present and describes the proposed project. The application was approved in 2021 but the project had not
begun when the one year permit period expired. The application is identical in scope except for two alterations: 1) The
entire roof of the original structure will be standing seam metal while that of the addition will be shingled: 2) Arear
basement window will be replaced with “bilco” doors

Notes:
C. Slater motions to reapprove application 21-42 as approved on 11/8/2021 with the (2) proposed
Amendments, pursuant to page 49(d) and 43(b) of the Historic District Design Guidelines.

Motion: T. Mayes seconds the motion, no objections and motion passed unanimously.

New Applications:

Project Description

22-46

Barbara Uhler

Parcel 138, W, High Street

Construction of new single-family detached home.

The apphcant and her contractor are present. The application was tabled in October due to the incompatible size of the
proposed windows and the unclear location of the proposed structure on the lot. The contractor presents revised front




Historic Landmark’s Commission November 14, 2022 — Regular Meeting

Draft Minutes

elevations with window reductions of 20% and a revised site plan with a front setback of 5’ and a rear west corner setback of

12’
Notes:
T. Mayes motions to approve application 22-46 pursuant to page 57 of the Historic District Design
Guidelines for new construction with modified reduction in front window size and proposed orientation
Motion: of the house on the lot. C. Slater seconds the motion, no objections and motion passed unanimously.
New Applications: 4 - Project Description ;
22-47 Dow Benedict Replace failing and uneven concrete porch steps with new uniform and easily
110 E. New Street navigable wooden steps.

The apphcant is present and describes the proposed project. The replacement steps will consist of consistent risers and
wider steps. Steps will be made of wood as will one house-side wood railing attached to the house with metal brackets

Notes:
T. Mayes motions to approve application 22-47 pursuant to page 41 (sections b & c) of the Historic
District Design Guidelines with simple wood railing composed of 2x4 with shadow box attached to the
Motion: house with metal brackets. C. Slater seconds the motion, no objections and motion passed unanimously.
New Applications: = e eldmee ol Project Description
22-48 Gregory King Replace ex:stlng gutters (Please note the applicant has been adwsed that "K" or

ogee profile gutters are not permitted when in the public view. | am awaiting

R KighStnsek confirmation on the use of half-round).

The apphcant is present and describes the proposed gutter replacement. “K” style or ogee profile gutters are not
recommended as appropriate according to the Historic District Design Guidelines. The applicants provide a photograph from
the 1930’s when the building was a gas station. In the photo, the building has ogee profile gutters thus establishing historic
evidence.

Notes:

Motion:

T. Mayes motions to approve application 22-48 pursuant to page 61(b) of the Historic District Design




Historic Landmark’s Commission November 14, 2022 — Regular Meeting

Draft Minutes

Guidelines noting that “K” style or ogee profile gutters are not consistent with the guidelines, but the
historic evidence provided by the applicant supersedes. He also asks a copy of the photo be included
in the application file. N. Saunders-Meske seconds the motion, no objections and motion passed
unanimously,

Workshop:
Continuing Business:

New Business:

Administrative Matters:

Adjournment:

N/A
N/A
N/A

N. Saunders-Meske motions to elect K. Alexander and E. Thompson HLC president and
vice president respectively. No objections and motion passes.

Motion to adjourn at 6:15 p.m.; no objections and passed unanimously.



	2022 December Town Council  Agenda
	3.   Public Comment Period
	9. Reports of Committees
	A. Finance Committee
	C. Police Committee
	D. Public Works Committee
	E. Parks and Recreation Committee
	A. Tree Commission
	B.  Water and Sanitary Board
	C. Historic Landmarks Commission

	December 2022 Town Council Packet

